
  
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 21, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
August 7, 2012, Regular Meeting 
August 7, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 21, 2012 AGENDA  9 

5:35 4  CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS  
A. Honoring the Life and Service of Deputy William R. 

Mast, Jr. 
B. Expressing the Appreciation of the Watauga County 

Board of Commissioners for the Assistance Rendered to 
Watauga County on July 26, 2012, and the Following 
Weeks 

CHAIRMAN MILLER 11 

5:45 5  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION’S SMALL BUSINESS 
PARK PROPOSAL 

MR. KEITH HONEYCUTT 
MR. TOMMY SOFIELD 
MR. JOE FURMAN 

13 

5:50 6  REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF INSURANCE/RESPONSE MAPS MR. JEFF VIRGINIA 29 

5:55 7  HUNGER AND HEALTH COALITION PAVING REQUEST MS. COMPTON FORTUNA 35 

6:00 8  PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  
A. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 

Scattered Site Housing Program  Close-Out 
B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2012 

Scattered Site Housing Program Pre-Application 

 
MS. MICHELLE BALL 
 
MR. JOE FURMAN 

 
41 

 
45 

7:00 9  PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 
A. Proposed Amendments to the Gate Ordinance 
B. Proposed Amendments to the Wireless Tower Ordinance  

MR. JOE FURMAN  
47 
55 

7:05 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Brush Grinding Contract 
B. Boards & Commissions 
C. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
59 
65 
71 

7:10 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  75 

8:10 12  BREAK  75 

8:15 13  CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143.-318.11(a)(6) 

 75 

8:25 14  POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION  75 

 8:30 15  ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
August 7, 2012, Regular Meeting 
August 7, 2012, Closed Session 
 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 7, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
August 7, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 

Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
[Clerk’s Note:  Chairman Miller and Commissioner Futrelle were not in attendance due to prior commitments.] 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable called the meeting to order at 8:03 A.M. and took a moment to reflect 
upon the recent tragedy in our County, which resulted in a fallen Officer, and announced that 
more formal recognition of Deputy William R. Mast, Jr.’s service to the County would be taken 
at a future meeting. 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Vice-Chairman Gable called for additions and/or corrections to the July 24, 2012, regular 
meeting and closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the July 24, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the July 24, 2012, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

DRAFT 

082112 BCC Meeting

2



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the August 7, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to delete Personnel Matters from closed session.  County 
Attorney Eggers requested to add time for possible action after closed session. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the August 7, 2012, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE WATAUGA COUNTY EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
PLAN 
Mr. Jeff Virginia, Director of Communications and Emergency Services, presented proposed 
amendments to the Watauga County Emergency Operations Plan.  The major change was 
identifying that communication operations is no longer a branch of the Sheriff’s Office and is 
now a part of the Communications and Emergency Services Department which reports directly 
to the County Manager.  Blowing Rock Communications was also eliminated from the Plan as it 
had been consolidated with Watauga County through the newly developed Communications and 
Emergency Services Department. 
 
Mr. Virginia stated that his Department is still in the process of updating the County’s 
emergency contact information as well as the media list. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the information provided is consistent with the authority to 
enter into the Plan. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable tabled consideration of the Watauga County Emergency Operations Plan 
until the August 21, 2012, meeting to allow time for all contact information to be updated as well 
as the correct current population. 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A.  Award of Architectural Services for Aquatic Center Repair Project 
Mr. Robert Marsh stated that in 2010 Sutton-Kennerly & Associates Engineers provided a list of 
repairs to address various building deficiencies at the aquatics center.  As a result, funds were 
budgeted in Fiscal Year 2013 to repair the skylights over the swimming pool.  An architect was 
required to design the custom skylights and ensure their compliance with the wind zone. 
 
The original architect, Innovative Design, who designed the energy upgrades in the 1990's, has 
provided options for restoring or replacing the skylights.  Mr. Marsh recommended Innovative 
Design for this project based on their knowledge and familiarity with the aquatic center. 

082112 BCC Meeting

3



 
If chosen, Innovative Design had plans to visit the site and prepare a recommendation outlining 
the best alternative to restore or replace the skylight units as well as provide construction 
documents.  Estimates for the entire project ranged from $33,471 to $65,795 depending upon the 
scope of repairs needed.  $75,000 is budgeted in Fiscal Year 2013 for this project. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that North Carolina G. S. 143-64.32 requires the use of the 
Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS) process for procurement of professional services 
performed by architects, engineers, surveyors, and construction managers at risk unless the 
Board exempts itself.   
 
Staff requested the Board hire Innovative Design to restore/replace the skylights at the aquatic 
center and exempt the project from the QBS process based on the firm’s knowledge and previous 
experience regarding the design work at the center. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to award architectural services to 
Innovative Design for the restoration and/or replacement of the skylights at the aquatic center 
and exempt the project from the Qualifications-Based Selection due to the firm’s knowledge and 
previous experience regarding the design work at the center. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

B. Change Order Request for Demolition of the Old High School 
Mr. Marsh presented a change order request for the old Watauga High School demolition project 
in the amount of $37,338.   The change order was due to additional asbestos being encountered 
over the original bid and contracted amount as follows:  9,346 sq. ft. of floor tile and mastic, 100 
sq. ft. of sink mastic, 200 sq. ft. of cooler ceiling plaster, and 30 sq. ft. of vibration dampeners.  
Approval of this change order would leave $62,662 remaining in the contingency to cover any 
additional issues that may arise. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice Chairman Gable, moved to approve the change order 
from NEO Corporation in the amount of $37,338 for additional asbestos abatement for the old 
high school demolition project with funds to be allocated from the project’s contingency. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Gable, Deal) 
 Nay-1(Blust) 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of July 2012.  
This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 

082112 BCC Meeting

4



B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for July 2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for July 2012, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

C. Annual Settlement of Tax Collector 
Tax Administrator Byrd presented the following Annual Settlement Statements for Fiscal Year 
2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to approve the Annual Settlement 
Statements for Fiscal Year 2012. 
  

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

D. Oath to Collect Taxes 
Mr. Byrd presented a proposed order granting authorization to collect taxes for Fiscal Year 2013.  
Once approved, a sworn oath was to be administered to Tax Administrator Byrd.   
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to grant authorization for Tax 
Administrator Byrd to collect taxes for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Clarification of EMS Advisory Committee Appointments   
County Manager Geouque stated that the EMS Advisory Committee was created as a part of the 
Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance.  The purpose of the Committee is to advise 
the County on matters related to the enforcement of the Ordinance and recommend standards of 
care, policies, procedures, and actions that would improve and enhance the quality of emergency 
services. 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

5



The Committee is comprised of representatives of various agencies involved in assisting and 
providing medical services to the community.  Upon initial adoption of the committee, names of 
the representatives were also approved by the Board.  The EMS Advisory Committee requested 
clarification that the membership be identified by each agency or its designee and not by specific 
member names.  This would allow the Committee to be consistent with the newly adopted 
Emergency Services Committee and also provide flexibility should a designated member not be 
able to attend.  The County Manager stated that the EMS Committee requested authorization to 
select the one to two (1-2) At-Large Appointee(s) and the one (1) First Responder from a 
geographic area not covered by the listed representatives. 
 
The County Manager requested clarification that appointments to the EMS Advisory Committee 
be based on the agency or its designee as listed in the Ambulance Franchise Ordinance: 
 

• Representative of Appalachian Regional Healthcare System 
• Representative of Boone Fire and Rescue Department 
• Representative of Blowing Rock Rescue Squad 
• Representative of Watauga Rescue Squad 
• Representative of Franchisee 
• Medical Director 
• County Manager 
• Fire Commission Chairman or Designee 
• Representative of Emergency Communications 
• 1-2 At-Large Appointee(s), from geographic areas not covered by the above 

representatives 
• 1 First Responder, from geographic areas not covered by the above representatives 

 
County Attorney Eggers stated that, as this was a clerical clarification, an amendment to the 
Ambulance Franchise Ordinance was not required. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to clarify that the EMS Advisory 
Committee membership be identified by each agency or its designee as follows:   Representative 
of Appalachian Regional Healthcare System, Representative of Boone Fire and Rescue 
Department, Representative of Blowing Rock Rescue Squad, Representative of Watauga Rescue 
Squad, Representative of Franchisee, Medical Director, County Manager, Fire Commission 
Chairman or Designee, Representative of Emergency Communications, one to two (1-2) At-
Large Appointee(s), from geographic areas not covered by the above representatives, and one (1) 
First Responder, also from geographic areas not covered by the above representatives with the 
At-Large Appointee(s) and the First Responder to be appointed by the EMS Advisory 
Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

6



B. Appointment of Voting Delegate at the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioners (NCACC) Annual Conference 

County Manager Geouque stated that the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' 
(NCACC) Annual Conference is scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County.  Each 
county in attendance is required to select a voting member for representation at the annual 
business meeting which is conducted as a part of the conference. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to appoint the County Manager as 
Watauga County’s voting delegate for the business meeting at the NCACC Annual Conference 
unless Chairman Miller or Commissioner Futrelle planned to attend and agreed to be the voting 
delegate. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

C. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that per the bylaws of the Region D Development Corporation, 
each county was required to annually appoint four persons to serve as members of the 
Development Corporation Board.  Representative categories are local government (1), private 
lending institution (1), and community organization or a business organization (2).  
 
At the July 24, 2012, meeting, Mr. John Spear was appointed, as the Watauga County Local 
Government Representative.  Consideration of the remaining three appointments was tabled to 
allow time for verification of the eligibility of representation. 
 
The County Manager stated that Mr. Brian Crutchfield, current Community Organization 
Representative, remains eligible through his service as a member of the Watauga County 
Community Foundation and the Rotary Club; Mr. Jim Furman, current Business Organization 
Representative, remains eligible as a local business owner; and Mr. Brian Riggins, current 
Private Lending Institution Representative, remains eligible as a resident of Watauga County and 
employee of a lending institution, First Citizens Bank.  Mr. Riggins works at the Bank in Wilkes 
County; however, he had expressed interest in continuing to represent Watauga County on the 
Development Corporation Board if so appointed. 
 
Commissioner Blust, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to reappoint the following as 
Watauga County representatives to the Region D Development Corporation Board:  Mr. Brian 
Crutchfield as the Community Organization Representative, Jim Furman as the Business 
Organization Representative, and Mr. Brian Riggins as the Private Lending Institution 
Representative. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

7



D. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque made the following announcements: 
 

• The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) 105th Annual 
Conference is scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County. 
 

• The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday, 
September 7, 2012, at Linville Ridge. 
 

• An Interlocal Governmental Retreat was scheduled for Thursday, September 13, 2012, at 
5:00 P.M.; however, due to a conflict with that date, it will be rescheduled with a new 
date for the meeting to be announced when available. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 8:37 A.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
  

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to resume the open meeting at 
8:55 A.M. 

VOTE: Aye-3(Gable, Blust, Deal) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-2(Miller, Futrelle) 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
There was no action taken after closed session. 

ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Gable adjourned the meeting at 8:55. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

082112 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 21, 2012 AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS 

 A.  Honoring the Life and Service of Deputy William R. Mast, Jr. 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Chairman will present a resolution honoring Watauga County Deputy Sheriff William 
Ronald Mast, Jr. who was killed in the line of duty on July 26, 2012.  The Sheriff and his staff 
have been requested to attend the meeting along with Paige Mast and the Mast family.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4: 

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS 

B.  Expressing the Appreciation of the Watauga County Board of Commissioners for the 
Assistance Rendered to Watauga County on July 26, 2012, and the Following Weeks  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Chairman will present a resolution expressing appreciation for the assistance received 
throughout the William R. Mast, Jr. tragedy.   
 
 
 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION’S SMALL BUSINESS PARK PROPOSAL 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Keith Honeycutt, EDC Chairman, Mr. Tommy Sofield, EDC member, and Mr. Joe Furman 
will present a request for the Board to formally designate the old Watauga High School property 
as a business park.  In addition, the EDC requests to be designated as the sole development and 
marketing agent of the property.   
 
The Board previously approved marketing the property as a business park while actively 
pursuing the sale of property for commercial, residential or retail use.  The Board may approve 
the request as presented, table the decision for future review and discussion, schedule a work 
session or include the item for discussion at the Board’s annual retreat. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

13



082112 BCC Meeting

14



082112 BCC Meeting

15



082112 BCC Meeting

16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Master Plan  

 
For  

 

SUMMIT   BUSINESS   PARK 
 

Western North Carolina’s Premier Class “A” Business Location 
Located in the Heart of the North Carolina High Country 

Boone, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Watauga County is a Certified Entrepreneurial Community 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

17



Table of Contents 
 

       
                 Page 
  
INTRODUCTION         1 
 Plan Background and Objectives       
 Master Plan Context        
 Master Plan Implementation       
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS        2 
 Topography          
 Natural Hazards         
 Stream Corridors         
 Wetlands          
 Prior Land Use          
 Current Zoning         
 
INFRASTRUCTURE        3
 Electricity           
 Natural Gas          
 Water Sewer          
 Telecom          
 Highways          
 Mass Transit          
 Airports           
 
DEVELOPMENT TIMING        4 
 
AVAILABLE PROPERTIES       5 
 
SUSTAINABLE DESIGN PRINCIPLES      6 
 Waste Reduction         
 Pollution          
 Energy Conservation        
 Water Conservation         
 
APPENDIX 
 Site Data     
 Existing Conditions Plan 
 Business Park Conceptual Site plan 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

18



INTRODUCTION 
 

Plan Background and Objectives 
Planning for the Summit Business Park was sparked by recommendations from the Watauga 
County Economic Development Commission (EDC). In the winter of 2011, the EDC engaged 
the services of InSite Consulting, a site selection and economic development consulting firm to 
prepare a Targeted Marketing Analysis that would assist the Commission in establishing a 
better foundation for engaging in more efficient and effective marketing. The development of the 
plan reinforced and emphasized the fact that a significant “gap” in attracting future targeted 
markets to the County lies in our lack of “client-ready” manufacturing space/product. The 
consultants identified the existing Watauga High School campus, now vacant, on Highway 105 
as a potential “diamond-in-the-rough” - a natural site for the development of a publicly-owned, 
fully infrastructured “Class A” Business Park. The idea began to further gain momentum when it 
was introduced at the 2012 Economic Development Summit, a gathering of local leaders 
focused economic development. The Summit Business Park Master plan was a product of these 
early efforts.  
 
The objective of the Summit Business Park Master Plan is to enable the creation of a 
well‐planned employment center in Watauga County that is ready for development, i.e. “shovel 
ready”. The master plan contains many components that will help make the property attractive, 
including: a transportation system that provides for efficient multi-model circulation, greenway 
trails with connections to existing and planned trails in the area, a utility plan that provides a 
clear path to development, sustainable design criteria for both public and private entities, and 
minimum standards of architectural and landscape design elements to ensure that the value 
and aesthetic of the park remains attractive to the community as well as prospective employers. 
The plan’s strong emphasis on sustainable policies and practices are a reflection of planning 
principals that local residents named as being important in numerous local visioning efforts. 
 
Master Plan Context 
The Master Plan guides the planning, public investment, and ultimate development of the 
property by providing a desired urban form and implementation strategy. This is accomplished 
by providing a preferred layout and specifying the necessary infrastructure components to 
support the anticipated development demands. In addition, the Plan takes into consideration 
other long range planning efforts and capital improvements in and around the property. The long 
range plans considered in the planning process include the Citizen’s Plan for Watauga, Boone’s 
Comprehensive Plan, and Watauga County’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan. The Plan 
works within the findings and recommendations of Boone’s 2030 Land Use Master Plan. The 
Plan also acknowledges market needs, including consideration of parcel size, site configuration 
and suitability, access, utilities, and quality of life elements. Additionally, the Master Plan 
considers complementary uses and design elements that will contribute to successful and viable 
employment centers. The Plan is structured so that the initial development can occur without 
excessive costs, time constraints, and entitlement hurdles. 
 
Master Plan Implementation 
The Master Plan provides choice and flexibility to respond to potential employers’ needs. It is 
designed to accommodate a range of development sizes to meet the projected needs of 
Watauga County’s identified targeted markets. The plan provides a road map for the 
development of a Class “A” Business Park by designation of “shovel ready” development sites.  

 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

19



EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
The property is the original site of Watauga High School located along an existing highway 
corridor within the corporate limits of Boone. Of the approximate total 75 acres, approximately 
half of the property has been built upon, leaving a significant portion undeveloped. The 
surrounding area is urban in character. Access to the site is provided via NC Highway 105. The 
traffic signal was removed when the school was abandoned. Wilson Drive adjoins the north-
western property boundary is a logical location for additional access.  
 
The following sections further describe the plan area in terms of natural features, land use, and 
infrastructure. 

 
Topography 
The plan area is defined by its topography. The central portion of the site is relatively flat and is 
bordered by sloped hillsides which form a natural buffer surrounding the property. The resulting 
“plateau” of land is thereby separated from the adjoining highway commercial land uses to the 
west, north, and east and the residential land uses to the south by a significant barrier in the 
form of mature forest. 
 
Natural Hazards 
According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), flood hazards are present 
to the north and east. A small portion of the property is located within the designated Special 
Flood Hazard Area.  
 
Stream Corridors 
Two creeks border the plan area. Winkler’s Creek to the south and Hodge’s Creek to the north 
along Highway 105. These streams are healthy for urban streams. Winkler’s Creek provides a 
major portion of Boone’s drinking water supply.   
 
Wetlands 
A search of the National Wetlands Inventory Map yielded no results for this property. A detailed 
wetlands delineation will be undertaken as part of the Phase 1 Environmental Assessment.  
 
Prior Land Use 
The property is the site of the former Watauga High School. The land uses currently 
surrounding the property to the west, north and east are highway commercial in nature and 
consist of retail, restaurant, and multi-family uses. Land use to the south is predominately 
residential with most properties protected by a large forested hillside buffer.  
 
Current Zoning 
The developed Plan area is within Boone’s General Business Zoning District. Within this district, 
most retail, wholesale, office, clerical, research and service related land uses are permitted by 
right. Light Industrial land uses are permitted “Special Uses” within the District which require the 
approval of the local zoning board.  
 

 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

20



INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

Electricity  
Provided by New River Light & Power  
Existing 12.47 KV distribution line on-site w/2 substations in close proximity provide ample 3-
phase capacity for commercial/industrial operations. 
 
Natural Gas  
Provided by Frontier Energy   
Existing 2” PE line on-site with 6” PE main line on NC Highway 105. 
  
Water 
Provided by Town of Boone   
Existing 8 ” main and a separate 2” line on-site  
System Capacity Total/Excess: 4.5 mgd/2.25 mgd     
 
Sewer   
Provided by Town of Boone  
Two existing 8” gravity mains on-site  
System Capacity Total/Excess: 4.82 mgd/2.4 mgd 
 
Telecom   
Provided by ____. T-1, ISDN, DSL   
Fiber optics and digital switching available   

 
Highways   
The Park is located on NC Highway 105. Major access is provided by US Highways 321 and 
421. Interstate Highways are I-77 and I-40 are both within 1 hour drive.    
 
Mass Transit  
The Park is served by AppalCart and located on (4) fare-free bus routes.  
 
Airports (The following are all within 2 hours drive of Summit Park)  
Hickory Municipal Airport – public airport w/o commercial service 
Piedmont Triad International Airport – 6 major carriers, FedEx cargo Hub   
Charlotte-Douglas International Airport – 10 major carriers, US Airways Hub  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

21



BUSINESS PARK DEVELOPMENT TIMING 
 

 
Development 
Activities  
  

 
Short Term (6 Month) 

 
Middle Term (1 Year) 

 
Long Term (1 Year +) 

Decision Process (i.e. 
whether to develop 
the Park) 

   

Master Planning 
 

   

Development 
Approvals 

                     

Demolition of old  
High School  

                      

Construction of 
Infrastructure (i.e. 
roads, utilities, etc.)  

   

Design/Construct 
Spec Building 

   

Marketing 
 

   

      
 
Note 
 
1. A number of activities will be happening concurrently until the Park is totally 
 developed and occupied. 
 
2. Business Park Development will take several years and occur in stages or phases as 
 funding becomes available. 
 
3. Companies should be encouraged to locate within the park as soon as site development 
 is possible. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

22



CURRENTLY AVAILABLE PROPERTIES 
 
Site   Lot Size            Pad Ready      Bldg. Footage¹     Parking Spaces² 
LOT 1  2.2 Acres    .9 Acres         18,000 SF     60 Spaces    
LOT 2   3.6 Acres  2.3 Acres         45,000 SF   135 Spaces 
LOT 3   9.5 Acres  1.4 Acres         30,000 SF     90 Spaces 
LOT 4   4.5 Acres  2.3 Acres         45,000 SF   135 Spaces  
LOT 5  5.5 Acres  2.6 Acres                 50,000 SF   150 Spaces 
LOT 6   4.5 Acres  2.3 Acres           45,000 SF   135 Spaces 
LOT 7   5.0 Acres  2.9 Acres          55,000 SF   165 Spaces 
LOT 8   5.0 Acres   2.4 Acres         47,500 SF   140 Spaces 
LOT 9  6.0 Acres  3.2 Acres         60,000 SF      180 Spaces 
LOT 10 5.0 Acres  2.1 Acres         40,000 SF   120 Spaces 
LOT 11 5.5 Acres  2.1 Acres         40,000 SF   120 Spaces 
LOT 12 3.5 Acres  2.3 Acres         45,000 SF   135 Spaces 
LOT 13  6.7 Acres    .0 Acres                 WS II Watershed Rules Apply 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Building square footage is based on the current B-3 zoning classification and an allowable FAR of .429 
on the “Pad-Ready” areas only.  
 
2. The number of parking spaces is based on an average of 3 spaces per thousand square feet of mixed 
manufacturing and office land use. 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

23



SUSTAINABLE DESIGN PRINCIPLES 
 

The Business Park is intended to develop with sustainable design elements that attract 
businesses suitable for our location having operational characteristics that limit impacts on the 
natural environment. The plan seeks to reduce waste, pollution, energy use, and water 
consumption within the plan area. The area’s sustainability strategy is multi‐faceted and 
identifies strategies that affect land use planning, public infrastructure, transportation, building 
design, business operation practices, and area maintenance. Sustainable practices and design 
will be shared by both public and private entities.  
 
The following sections highlight actions that will ensure future development and land use 
activities within the plan area are sustainable. 
 
Waste Reduction 
Construction Waste: Encourage that site development and building construction are designed 
and managed to minimize the amount of materials used on a given project. Development 
projects should seek to minimize waste to Watauga County’s landfill and explore options to 
discard excess materials for local reuse. New buildings should utilize durable building materials 
with longer life spans. 
 
Recycling: Individual business operations should be planned to ensure waste materials are 
sorted for recycling and reuse. Coordinate with local officials to ensure facilities and resources 
are adequate to accommodate the recyclable materials generated from the park.  
 
Composting: Require existing landscaping material and organic waste to be composted or 
reused. Explore options to provide composting on individual project sites.  
 
Product Packaging: Targeted employers should reduce product packaging to the absolute 
minimum to allow for its safe transportation and consumer purchase. Consider incentives for 
local manufacturers that limit packaging or utilize innovative solutions to packaging. 
 
Pollution 
Local Materials: Encourage development projects to use locally available materials to reduce 
carbon emissions caused by transport. Ensure that local development standards do not 
otherwise require construction materials that are not available locally.  
 
Stormwater Treatment/ Water Quality: Require that stormwater generated from paved surfaces 
is adequately cleaned and purified before it is discharged into the natural system. Require water 
quality facilities for streets, parking areas, and roof tops.  
 
Mixed Land Use: Allow for and encourage a mix of complementing land uses within the plan 
area to provide a collection of services within close proximity. 
 
Alternative Transportation: Create a transportation network and building pattern that encourages 
transit use, pedestrian and bicycle travel, carpooling, and rideshare. Develop a trail/multi‐use 
path network within conservation corridors to promote recreational opportunity and bicycle 
mobility. 
 
Landscaping and Tree Planting: Install native plant and tree species as part of all new 
development to off‐set carbon emissions.  

082112 BCC Meeting

24



Energy Conservation 
Solar Orientation: Individual buildings should be sited and oriented to capitalize on solar 
exposure to lessen energy demands related to lighting and heating. 
 
Landscaping for Shade and Cooling: Require landscaping along exterior building walls to 
provide both shade and cooling in the summer and protection from the winds in winter.  
 
Day Lighting Buildings: Encourage the design of buildings with architectural features that utilize 
sunlight for interior illumination. 
 
LEED Certification: Consideration should be given to require a certain level of LEED goals and 
strategies for each new building constructed within the park. 
 
Solar and Wind Harvesting: Explore opportunities to install solar PV and wind harvesting 
elements on new structures to offset energy consumption and to capitalize on their large surface 
coverage.  
 
Water Conservation 
Native/Drought Tolerant Landscaping: Limit landscaping material to native and drought tolerant 
plant species. 
 
Rain Water Harvesting: Encourage the collection of rain water for irrigation and toilet flushing 
purposes. Consider the design and construction of harvesting facilities for recreation and other 
public areas. 
 
Water Efficient Utilities: Require that buildings and recreational facilities are constructed with 
water efficient utilities (i.e. toilets, sinks, showers and the like). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

25



Watauga High School Site Data 
Parcel # Size  Primary Zoning   Supplemental Zoning 
7724  39.5  B-3    Corridor Overlay 
        Viewshed Protection  
0228    1.2  B-3     Corridor Overlay 
        Special Flood Hazard Area 
4202    6.0  B-3    Corridor Overlay 
        Special Flood Hazard Area 
2114     .26  B-3    Corridor Overlay 
7413   1.31  B-3    Corridor Overlay 
        Viewshed Protection 
5763  19.93  B-3            (10.71 Ac)   Viewshed Protection 
    RA              (6.85 Ac)   Viewshed Protection 
    R-1                 (.9 Ac)  Viewshed Protection 
    Unzoned    (1.47 Ac)   
0378    6.73  R-1    Water Supply Watershed 
 
Total Acreage   74.93 Acres 
Average Lot Size  Approx. 5.75 Acres 
Pad-Ready Acreage    Approx. 27 Acres  
 
Primary Zoning District - Permitted Use(S)¹ 
B-3, General Business: 
 Commercial Retail    Z 
 Commercial Wholesale   S 
 Office, Clerical, Research and Services Z 
 Light Industrial     S 
 Institutional Residence or Care  Z 
 Restaurants     Z 
 Storage and Parking    Z 
 Emergency Service Operations  Z 
 Transportation     S 
 Commercial Greenhouses   Z 
 Government Uses    Z 
 Major Subdivisions    S 
 
“Z” denotes Administrative approval, permit by right 
“S” denotes Board approval, subject to discretion of the BOA 
 
1. The Table of Permissible Uses is currently under review by the Town Staff and Planning Commission. 
The type of business and light industry the Business Park is planning to attract is an important 
consideration in this process. Any effort toward making those land uses identified in the Target Marketing 
Analysis permitted by right within the Business Park will be critical to the permitting and approval process. 
One of our major objectives is to structure a plan so that development within the Business Park can occur 
without excessive costs, time constraints, and entitlement hurdles.   

082112 BCC Meeting

26



Supplemental Zoning District(S) 
Corridor Overlay District: 
 Site development requirements applicable to lots within the Corridor District may limit 
 traffic access to the internal street system. Other Corridor District requirements include 
 locating or screening loading areas, storage areas or mechanical equipment so as to not 
 be seen from the protected thoroughfare.  
 
Viewshed Protection District: 
 Development Intensity for land within the Viewshed District is limited to the R-1 District 
 Intensity. None or very little development is proposed within the Viewshed Protection 
 District.   
 
Steep Slopes: 
 In accordance with UDO provisions for development on Steep Slopes, a site specific 
 geologic hazard analysis will be required for design/engineering of a portion of the 
 internal street leading to Wilson Drive. 
 
Transitional Zones: 
 The UDO establishes a 150 feet “transitional zone” adjacent to property zoned R-1 and 
 R-A. According to Town Staff, this provision applies even if the property zoned R-1 or R-
 A is part of the lot being developed for commercial or light industrial use. A Special Use 
 Permit is required for any development within the Transitional Zone. Additional 
 Performance Standards may be (but are not always) required.  
 
Special Flood Hazard Area: 
 Special Flood Hazard area requirements will apply to development of Lot #10 only. 
 
Water Supply Watershed: 
 Watershed area requirements are applicable to Lot 13 which is not planned to be 
 developed for commercial or light industrial use. This Lot is residentially zoned.  
 
Major Subdivison Approval Process 
Board of Adjustment approves preliminary plat via Special Use Permit. The Special Use Permit 
allows for subdivision infrastructure improvements which can be completed at once or in phases 
as approved by the Board of Adjustment. The Town Council then approves the final plat for the 
entire development or for each approved phase of the development. 
 
Public Streets, Sidewalks 
The internal street system is proposed to be publicly maintained. NCDOT currently maintains 
High School Drive and Temple Drive is maintained by the Town of Boone. The Master Plan 
proposes extending High School Drive to Wilson Drive with a 50’ dedicated public ROW, a 20’ 
paved curb and gutter cross-section, and sidewalks on each side.  

082112 BCC Meeting

27



Drawn by: Andrew M. Gahagan

k

k

k

k

k

Hiking 
Trail

Hiking/Biking
Trail

Observation

Lot 1

Lot 2

Lot 3

Lot 4

Lot 5

Lot 6

Lot 7

Lot 8

Lot 9

Lot 10

Lot 12

Lot 13

Lot 11

2.2 ac

3.6 ac
4.5 ac

4.5 ac 5 ac

5 ac

3.5 ac

5.5 ac

6 ac

6.7 ac

5 ac5.5 ac
9.5 ac

Keystone Dr.

Highland Ave.

Hwy 105

Hwy 105

Wilson Dr.

Wi
nk

ler
s C

ree
k R

d.

Rushing Creek Dr.
Assembly Dr.

Winklers Meadow

Deck H ill Rd.

Winkler's Creek Road

Summit Business Park
Western North Carolina's Premier Class "A" Business Location
Presented By:
The Watauga County Economic Development Commission
Boone, North Carolina
Watauga County is a Certified Entrepreneurial Community

´

0 250 500125 Feet
- Pad-Ready Area

082112 BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF INSURANCE/RESPONSE MAPS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jeff Virginia, Communications and Emergency Services Director, will request the Board 
approve the insurance/response maps for Boone, Deep Gap, Meat Camp, and Triplet tax districts 
which the State has now approved.  Upon Board approval, minutes will be sent to the State 
documenting that the changes were approved. 
 
Board action is requested.   
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

29



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

30



082112 BCC Meeting

31



082112 BCC Meeting

32



082112 BCC Meeting

33



082112 BCC Meeting

34



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

HUNGER AND HEALTH COALITION PAVING REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Compton Fortuna, Director of the Hunger and Health Coalition, will present paving requests 
to repair Health Center Drive which services the Hunger and Health Coalition, Caldwell 
Community College, and the non-profit agencies that sub-lease space from the Coalition in the 
Hannah Building.  Ms. Fortuna previously requested assistance from the Board in November of 
2011.  The current estimates to repave the road range from $17,335 to $39,628.35 and $6,769 to 
$12,531 to repair the pot holes only.  The County does provide property and liability and flood 
insurance for the facility. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

35



082112 BCC Meeting

36



082112 BCC Meeting

37



082112 BCC Meeting

38



082112 BCC Meeting

39



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

40



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  

A.  CDBG 2009 Scattered Site Housing Program Close-Out 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to allow public comment on the closeout of the current 
2009 Scattered Site Housing Program (SSHP) project.  The grant administrator, Ms. Michelle 
Ball with High Country Council of Governments, will be present to address any questions or 
comments.   
 
Board action is requested to close-out the current 2009 Scattered Site Housing Program (SSHP) 
project CDBG # 09-C2010. 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

41



Watauga County CDBG Grant 09-C-2010 
Closeout Hearing August 21, 2012 

 
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to give the opportunity for citizen input concerning the 
closeout of the Watauga County CDBG Scattered Site Housing Program.  The program provided 
housing repair assistance to very low- and low-income residents within Watauga County. 
 
A total of four households were treated with program funds from the primary grant. Nine homes 
were treated with funds set aside for emergency repairs (less than $5,000).  Four additional 
homes were assisted with emergency repairs from funds recaptured from a previous 
rehabilitation. 
 
In the main portion of the program three homes received relocation and clearance assistance and 
one received rehabilitation assistance. Homes assisted on the program were located at:  
 
179 Lola Perry Road, Zionville (relocation & clearance) 
134 Miller Drive, Boone (relocation & clearance) 
7320 Meat Camp Road, Todd (rehabilitation) 
247 Upper Crab Orchard Road, Banner Elk [located in the Matney area of Watauga County] 
(relocation & clearance) 
 
The average cost of relocation & clearance was $ 82,805.00. 
The average cost of rehabilitation was $ 59,546.00. 
 
Watauga County received $400,000 for the 3 year program and the following was expended 
during this cycle of the program: 
  

• $9,974.00 for clearance activities,  
• $238,443.86 for relocation activities,  
• $67,582.14 for rehabilitation activities, 
• $47,000 for planning and administration, 
• $39,845 for emergency repairs    

 
Unexpended CDBG funds in the amount of $155.00 will be de-obligated to be used for 
other CDBG funded programs.   
 
In addition to the $400,000 Scattered Site funds awarded for this project the County 
received $19,335.36 from the sale of a home that was rehabilitated in a previous grant cycle.  
The County was able to use these funds to extend the emergency repair portion of this 
project and treat 4 additional homes. 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

42



Emergency Repair/Local Option Participants 
 
2621 Meat Camp Road, Boone   Septic System 
1542 Laure Creek Road, Sugar Grove New Roof 
395 Hartley Hill Dr., Blowing Rock Foundation Repair, Partial Roof 
125 Wilson Hicks Road, Vilas  Windows, Porch Repair 
1254 Jakes Mtn. Road, Deep Gap  New Roof 
4992 Meat Camp Road, Todd  New Roof 
220 Curley Maple Valley Drive, Boone Partial Roof, Electrical Repair 
352 Mast Gap Road, Sugar Grove  New Roof 
568 Hardaman Circle, Boone  Floor Repair/Stabilization  
 
 
Program Income Participants (Emergency Repairs) 
 
6887 Junaluska Road, Boone  New Roof 
167 Lomax Street, Boone   New Roof, Ceiling Repair 
270 Potter Town Road, Todd  Roof Repair, Foundation Stabilization 
256 Potter Town Road, Todd  Floor Repair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

43



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

44



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  

B.  CDBG 2012 Scattered Site Housing Program Pre-Application 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled to begin the process for the new 2012 Scattered Site 
Housing Program (SSHP) project.  Mr. Joe Furman, Planning Director, and Ms. Michelle Ball 
with High Country Council of Governments will be present to address any questions or 
comments. 
 
Board action is requested to apply for 2012 Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site 
Housing Program (SSHP) funds and designate the High Country Council of Governments to 
prepare the application and administer the grant.  
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

45



Watauga County 2012 CDBG  
Scattered Site Housing Program  

Pre-application Public Hearing August 21, 2012 
 
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to give the opportunity for citizen input 
concerning the upcoming application submission for CDBG Scattered Site 
Housing Funds.   
 
Each county in the State of North Carolina (with the exceptions of Mecklenburg, 
Wake, and Cumberland) receives funding every 3 years to assist low-income 
homeowners with housing repairs.   Watauga County is scheduled to receive 
$225,000 in CDBG funds in the 2012 cycle (down from $400,000 in 2009) and 
will be required to submit an application to the NC Division of Community 
Assistance stating how they plan to administer the project.   
 
At a previous Board Meeting, the Commissioners appointed an advisory committee 
for the Scattered Site Housing Project.  The committee is made up of 
representatives from the County, each municipality, and area agencies and will 
meet to help plan the program as well as select the homeowners that will 
participate.   
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS  

A.  Proposed Amendments to the Gate Ordinance 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Joe Furman, in conjunction with the County Attorney, will present technical amendments to 
the County’s gate ordinance. The amendments are included in your packet.  A new section 
(100.09) has been added to allow for an appeal process.  Section 100.04 A & B has been 
reworded to clarify confusing and conflicting language.   
 
Historically, the County holds a public hearing to allow citizen comment on ordinance 
amendments.  Should the Board approve the changes as presented, staff would recommend a 
public hearing being scheduled for the September 18, 2012, meeting.   
 
Staff requests Board direction.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

47



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Friday, August 10, 2012 11:05 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle; Four Eggers
Subject: Proposed amendments to Gate Ordinance
Attachments: Watauga County - Gated Community Ordinance 8-8-12.doc

Deron, 
The County Attorney and I are proposing some technical amendments to  the subject ordinance – see attachment. The 
ordinance as adopted does not contain an appeal process, so such a process is set forth in the proposed new Section 100.09. 
Revised wording for Sections 100.04 A & B is proposed to clear up confusing/conflicting language. Local practice is for the Board 
of Commissioners to hold a public hearing to consider ordinance amendments. Thank you. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

48



Watauga County Ordinance to Regulate Installation and Maintenance of 
Electronic Access Gates for Gated Communities 

 
Section  
100.01                                  Authority and Purpose 
100.02 Definitions 
100.03 Requirements 
100.04 Gate Development Specifics 
100.05 Process 
100.06 Maintenance 
100.07 Modifications 
100.08 Violations 
100.09                                 Appeal Procedure 
100.10 Effective Date 
 
100.01  AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the general police powers granted to 
Watauga County by North Carolina Gen. Stat. §153A-121, N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-
352, and Section 503 of the 2009 North Carolina State Fire Prevention Code.  The 
purpose of this ordinance is to establish rules and standards for the installation 
of electronic access gates for gated communities in order to provide for the safe 
and efficient ingress and egress for fire, law enforcement, and other emergency 
personnel. 
 
100.02  DEFINITIONS  
For the purposes of this section, the following words shall have the following 
meanings:  
Key Box:  A secure, tamperproof device with a lock operable only by a fire 
department, police department, or emergency services department master key, 
and containing building entry keys and other such devices that may be required 
for access in an  emergency.  
Gated Community:  A development that is enclosed within a geographical area by 
restrictive gates.  
Gates:  A crossbar, door, or other obstructive device which is utilized for the 
purpose of restricting, controlling, or obstructing entry or exit by motor vehicles 
or pedestrians to or from a private roadway.  
Ingress/Egress:  The point where vehicles or pedestrians enter and exit a 
development.  
Modifications:  Any structural changes from the original configuration (new or 
existing), change from manual to electric, change of electronic control operation 
or alterations requiring a permit. 
Private Streets:   Internal streets that are not owned or maintained by North 
Carolina Department of Transportation and that are owned and maintained by 
an entity responsible for upkeep and maintenance, such as a homeowners 
association, community group, property management company, or similar 
organization.                
 

082112 BCC Meeting

49



100.03  REQUIREMENTS  
New and existing, when applicable, gated communities shall comply with the 
following requirements: 
A.  All streets in the gated community must be private streets.  
B.  The location of the gate(s) shall comply with Section 100.04 of this ordinance  
and the North Carolina State Fire Prevention Code, as applicable.  
C.  The gates shall be maintained in working order and inspected as needed.   
D.  Gates pre-existing to the adoption of this ordinance shall not be affected by 
this ordinance provided they are maintained and in working order. If such gates 
are replaced or modified, they shall conform to the requirements of Sections 
100.04, parts C through K, of this ordinance and the North Carolina State Fire 
Prevention Code as applicable.  
 E.  Applicants shall adhere to section 100.05 below regarding the process for 
obtaining approval for gates.  
 
100.04  GATE DEVELOPMENT SPECIFICS  
A.  Entrance ways and exit ways shall be a minimum of twenty (20) feet 
unobstructed width.  When separated by medians, posts or other obstructions, 
each entrance and exit lane shall be provided with a minimum unobstructed 
width of twelve (12) feet.  There  shall also be at least 40’ measured from the gate 
to the ultimate right-of-way so the fire truck or emergency vehicle will not block 
the adjacent public right-of-way.  
A. Entrance gates shall be located a minimum of 40’ from the adjacent public 
road right-of-way to allow for emergency vehicle clearance at entry.  
B.  The ingress/egress area at the gate location shall be separated by a 
minimum 5’ landscape island.  
B. Combined entry and exit ways shall provide a minimum unobstructed width 
of twenty (20) feet. Entry and exit ways separated by landscape medians, guard 
houses, or other obstructions shall provide a minimum unobstructed width of 
twelve (12) feet. Entry and exit ways shall have a minimum unobstructed 
vertical clearance of not less than thirteen feet six inches (13’6”). 
C.  It shall be determined if the gates are to be manual or electrical in operation. 
All electrical vehicular  gates shall be provided with access control using a Radio 
Transceiver for public safety and authorized users.  This transceiver will allow 
emergency vehicles to open the gate from a mobile or portable radio, and must 
be pre-approved by Watauga County.  
 D.  All electrical vehicular gates shall be provided with a fail-open device in the 
event of power failures unless secondary power is provide by battery back-up or 
generator.  During a power failure, the gates will open and remain open.  These 
devices should restore the gate(s) to the closed position after the power is 
restored.  Any residential gated communities consisting of three (3) or less 
dwelling units are not subject to this requirement.  
E.  Gates need to be opened for appropriate personnel to enter the community 
during an emergency.  A  fire service recognized/approved dual key activating 
switch or padlock shall be installed to allow emergency personnel access 
through vehicular gates.  
F.  An approved dual key lock box containing cards, keys, pass codes and 

082112 BCC Meeting

50



operating instructions shall be provided at each entrance gate.  
G.  Gates shall be designed so that when fully opened do not obstruct the path 
of travel for vehicles or pedestrians, whether emergency and non-emergency. 
Gates shall remain fully open during an emergency event, when activated by 
responding agency, until reset.  A ‘Hold Open’ code must be included in design 
and functioning of the gate. 
H.  If there are two or more gates in any single development, all gates shall be 
operated in the same fashion. 
I.  Gate activation shall not be altered or placed out of service without prior 
notification to the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office, Watauga County 
Planning and Inspections Department and the Local Fire Department.  
J.  Each entrance gate shall be provided with an “override” feature to allow the 
gate(s) to remain open so that multiple fire apparatus can enter without having to 
wait for intermittent opening of the gate(s). 
K.  Each entrance gate shall be equipped with a manual override feature so as to 
permit opening during power failures or other emergency. 
 
100.05  APPLICATION AND APPROVAL PROCESS  
A.  The applicant shall submit a detailed plan, including but not limited to, 
scaled drawings showing the  location of the gates, turn radius, dimensions of 
the gates, pavement, sidewalks, curbs, etc.  Information such as topography 
lines, vegetation, site triangles, etc. shall also be included with the submittal.  
B.  The applicant shall submit these plans for review by the Planning & 
Inspections Department, who shall forward the plans to the Sheriff’s 
Department, Fire Marshal’s Office, EMS, and Local Fire Department for 
approval. 
C.   The Department of Planning & Inspections shall verify approval by the 
agencies listed in Section 100.05 (b) of the gate plan prior to issuance of a 
permit.   
D.  All property owners shall notify the Watauga County E911 Department of any 
gate access code changes prior to such changes taking effect. 
E.  All gated communities applying for a permit to install a gate shall 
acknowledge that if the affected properties gate fails to operate in its intended 
operational capacity, and such failure results in damage to the gate or 
constitutes the responding emergency agency to alter normal entrance 
procedures, the responding agency, mutual aid departments and Watauga 
County shall not be held liable for damages incurred. 
 
100.06  MAINTENANCE  
Gates subject to this ordinance shall be kept in their original working order and 
shall be repaired and/or replaced in the event they are disabled and/or 
damaged.  It shall not be the responsibility of the County to maintain these 
gates.  Gates subject to this ordinance shall be monitored annually by the Local 
Fire Department and verified by the Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office every 
three (3) years of their operation or as deemed appropriate by the Watauga 
County Fire Marshal’s Office.   
 

082112 BCC Meeting

51



100.07  MODIFICATIONS 
Any gate (new or existing) altered outside the scope of their original installation 
and/or permitting, will be considered a modification.  Notification and plans for 
modification shall be submitted to the Watauga County Office of Planning and 
Inspections for review and decision upon compliance with this ordinance. 
 
100.08 VIOLATIONS  
A.  It shall be unlawful for any person to construct, install, or maintain any 
blocking device, such as a gate or any other type of barrier without first review 
and approval by Watauga County.  
B.  If it is found that a gated community is in violation of this ordinance, the 
property owners association shall be notified of said violation in writing by the 
Watauga County Fire Marshal’s Office.  Failure to remedy the violation within 
seven (7) business days shall subject the violator to remedies as authorized 
under G. S. 153A-123 and G.S. 143-139.  Civil penalties shall be imposed in the 
amount of $200.00 per day until the violation has been remedied.  In addition to 
the civil penalty, or in the alternative, this ordinance may be enforced by 
injunction and order of abatement in the General Court of Justice.  Each day’s 
continuing violation of this ordinance is a separate and distinct offense. 
C.  In the event the gated community does not have a property owners 
association or the association is defunct, insolvent, or otherwise non-responsive 
to a notice of violation, the county may pursue each individual lot owner for 
enforcement of the remedies as set forth above. 
 
100.09 APPEAL PROCEDURE    
The Watauga County Board of Adjustments shall hear all appeals which may be 
taken by an owner or other party in interest from any decision or order of the 
Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections.   
The appeal shall be taken within ten  days from the service of the decision by the 
Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections by filing with the Watauga 
County Director of Planning and Inspections a notice of appeal, which shall 
specify  the grounds  upon which the appeal is based. Upon the filing of any 
notice of  appeal, the  Watauga County Director of Planning and Inspections shall 
schedule the matter for hearing in accordance with the rules of procedure for the 
Watauga County Board of Adjustment.   When an appeal is from the decision of 
the Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections refusing to allow  the 
person aggrieved thereby to do any act, this decision shall remain  in force until 
modified or reversed. 
        When any appeal is from a decision of the Watauga County Office of 
Planning and Inspections requiring  the person aggrieved to do any act, the 
appeal shall have the effect of  suspending the requirement until the hearing of 
the Board, unless the Director of the Watauga County Office of Planning and 
Inspections certifies to the Board, after the notice of appeal is filed, that by 
reason of the facts stated in the certificate (a  copy of which shall be furnished to 
the petitioner) a suspension of the requirement would, in his or her opinion, 
cause imminent peril to life or property or that because the violation charged is 
transitory in nature a  stay would seriously interfere with enforcement of the 

082112 BCC Meeting

52



ordinance.  In that  case proceedings shall not be stayed except by a restraining 
order, which  may be granted by the Board of Adjustment or by a court of record 
an application upon notice to the Director of the Watauga County Office of 
Planning and Inspections and in accordance with the requirement of Rule 65 of 
the North Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. 
           (b)  The Watauga County Board of Adjustments shall have all the powers 
of the officer from whom the appeal is taken. 
 (2)  The Board shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of appeals, shall      
 give due notice to all the parties and shall render its decision within forty-five 
days of the conclusion of the evidence presented to it.  Any party may appear in 
person or by agent or by attorney.   The Board may reverse, affirm, in whole or in 
part, or may modify the  decision or order appealed.  The concurring vote of four-
fifths members of the  Board shall be necessary to reverse or modify any decision 
or order appealed under this Ordinance.   
 The Board shall have the power also in passing upon  appeals in any case 
where there are practical difficulties or undue hardships  in the way of carrying 
out the strict letter of this code, to adapt the  application of the code to the 
necessities of the case to the end that the spirit  of the code shall be observed, 
public safety and welfare secured, and  substantial justice done. 
 (3)  Every decision of the Board shall be subject to review by proceedings in 
 the nature of certiorari instituted in the Watauga County Superior Court 
 within 30 days after the written decision of the Board is filed or after a copy 
 thereof is delivered to the appealing party, whichever is later.  The decision of 
 the Board may be delivered to the aggrieved party either by hand delivery or 
 by any method authorized by the State Rules of Civil Procedure. 
 
100.10  EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon its ratification and adoption by the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners. 
 
READ, CONSIDERED, PASSED, AND APPROVED at the regular meeting of the 
Board of Commissioners for Watauga County at which a quorum was present 
and which was held the ____ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________(SEAL) 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

082112 BCC Meeting

53



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

54



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS  

B.  Proposed Amendments to the Wireless Tower Ordinance 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will present a proposed amendment to Article IV, Section A.10 of the Wireless 
Communication Tower Ordinance.  The amendment is needed to incorporate recent and future 
changes to applicable federal and state standards.  
 
Historically, the County holds a public hearing to allow citizen comment on ordinance 
amendments.  Should the Board approve the amendment as presented, staff would recommend a 
public hearing being scheduled for the September 18, 2012, meeting.   
 
Staff requests Board direction.   
 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

55



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Thursday, August 09, 2012 4:33 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Proposed wieless tower ordinace amendment
Attachments: DOC080912-004.pdf

Deron, 
Attached is a proposed amendment to Article IV, Section A.10 of the Wireless Communication Tower Ordinance for 
consideration at the August 21st Commissioners meeting. The amendment is needed to incorporate recent and future changes to 
applicable federal and state standards. Local practice is to hold a public hearing when amending ordinances under “general 
ordinance‐making authority”. Thank you. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

56



082112 BCC Meeting

57



Blank Page 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

58



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Brush Grinding Contract 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Sanitation Department recently solicited bids from four contractors for brush grinding 
services.  Only two bids were received in which Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., was the low bidder 
in the amount of $18.00 per ton.  The price includes grinding and hauling off the material and is 
valid until June 30, 2013.   
 
Approximately $100,000 has been budgeted for brush grinding in Fiscal Year 2012-2013, 
therefore staff is requesting the Board approve the $18.00 per ton price with a not-to-exceed 
amount of $100,000. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the $18.00 per ton price with a not to exceed amount of 
$100,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

59



082112 BCC Meeting

60



082112 BCC Meeting

61



082112 BCC Meeting

62



082112 BCC Meeting

63



082112 BCC Meeting

64



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Boards and Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Watauga County Library Board has recommended the following for consideration of 
appointment to the local Watauga County Library Board: 
 

George Bard Appointment 4 year term to expire August 31, 2016 
Terry Hamilton Appointment 4 year term to expire August 31, 2016 
Billy Ralph Winkler Appointment 4 year term to expire August 31, 2016 
Tish Rokoske Reappointment 4 year term to expire August 31, 2016 

 
 
 
Also, due to the recently amended Interlocal Agreement for the Appalachian Regional Library 
System, regional Board member’s terms are required to be staggered.  Therefore, the Watauga 
County Library Board recommends the following for consideration of appointment to the 
Appalachian Regional Library Board:  
 

Audrey Hartley Reappointment 1 year term to expire August 31, 2013 
Billy Ralph Winkler Appointment 2 year term to expire August 31, 2014 
Hugh Hagaman Appointment 3 year term to expire August 31, 2015 
George Bard Appointment 4 year term to expire August 31, 2016 

 
All the above are first readings; therefore, action is not required at this time. 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

65



          
            
 
 

 
 
 
July 13, 2012 
 
 
Mr. Nathan Miller, Chair 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Administrative Building, Suite 205 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
The new interlocal agreement requires the reappointment of regional board members for the 
staggering of terms. 
 At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 12th, 2012, board members 
voted unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Audrey Hartley be 
appointed to the Appalachian Regional Library Board for a 1-year term that would end August 
2013.   
Please approve the recommendation of the library board, and notify Ms. Hartley and me of his 
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our 
library. 
 
Audrey Hartley resides at 185 Keystone Drive, Boone, NC 28607 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Monica Caruso 
Watauga County Librarian 
 
Cc: Tish Rokoske  
Watauga County Library Board Chair 
 
Cc: Molly Westmoreland  
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries 
 
 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

66

http://www.arlibrary.org/


 

 

August 10, 2012 

 

Mr. Nathan Miller, Chair                       
Watauga County Board of Commissioners                          
Administrative Building, Suite 205          
814 West King Street                       
Boone, NC  28607 

Dear Mr. Miller: 

The Watauga County Library Board would like to ask that Terry Hamilton be appointed for a four year term.  
This would be Terry’s first full term and it would expire in August of 2016.                  
We would also like to request that Tish Rokoske be reappointed for a four year term. This would be Tish’s 
second full term and it would expire in August of 2016 as well.  

 
Terry Hamilton resides at 151 Jenny Lane, Boone, NC  28607 
Tish Rokoske resides at 145 Arbor Lane, Boone, NC 28607  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Monica Caruso                           
Watauga County Librarian 

Cc: Tish Rokoske                          
Watauga County Library Board Chair 

Cc: Molly Westmoreland                       
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries 

 

082112 BCC Meeting

67

http://www.arlibrary.org/


          
            
 
 

 
 
 
July 13, 2012 
 
 
Mr. Nathan Miller, Chair 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Administrative Building, Suite 205 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
The new interlocal agreement requires the reappointment of regional board members for the  
staggering of terms. 
At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 12th, 2012, board members 
voted unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Hugh Hagaman be 
appointed to the Appalachian Regional Library Board for a 3-year term that would end August 
2015.   
Please approve the recommendation of the library board, and notify Mr. Hagaman and me of his 
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our 
library. 
 
Hugh Hagaman resides at 6258 US Highway 421 N., Sugar Grove, NC 28679 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Monica Caruso 
Watauga County Librarian 
 
Cc: Tish Rokoske  
Watauga County Library Board Chair 
 
Cc: Molly Westmoreland  
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries 
 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

68

http://www.arlibrary.org/


          
            
 
 

 
 
 
July 13, 2012 
 
 
Mr. Nathan Miller, Chair 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Administrative Building, Suite 205 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
The new interlocal agreement requires the reappointment of regional board members for the  
staggering of terms. 
The Watauga County Library Board, on July 12, 2012, voted unanimously to recommend to 
Watauga County Commissioners that George Bard be appointed to his first full term to the 
Watauga County Library Board and to the Appalachian Regional Library Board; both terms will 
expire on August 2016.   
Please approve the recommendation of the library board, and notify Mr. Bard and me of his 
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our 
library. 
 
George Bard resides at 230 Hunting Road, Boone, NC 28607 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Monica Caruso 
Watauga County Librarian 
 
Cc: Tish Rokoske  
Watauga County Library Board Chair 
 
Cc: Molly Westmoreland  
Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

69

http://www.arlibrary.org/


          
            
 
 
 

 
 
July 13, 2012 
 
 
Mr. Nathan Miller, Chair 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Administrative Building, Suite 205 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
  
The new interlocal agreement requires the reappointment of regional board members for the  
staggering of terms. 
At the regular meeting of the Watauga County Library Board on July 12, 2012, board members 
voted unanimously to recommend to Watauga County Commissioners that Billy Ralph Winkler 
be appointed to the Watauga County Library Board and the Appalachian Regional Library Board 
for two full terms. The local term would expire August 2016 and the regional on August 2014.  
Please approve the recommendation of the library board, and notify Mr. Winkler and me of his 
appointment. Thanks to you and all of the commissioners for your continued support of our 
library. 
Mr. Winkler resides at 330 Wild Rose Lane, Boone, NC 28607.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Tish Rokoske 
Watauga County Library Board Chair 
 
Cc:   Monica Caruso 
        Watauga County Librarian 
 
 Cc: Molly Westmoreland 
        Director of Appalachian Regional Libraries 

082112 BCC Meeting

70

http://www.arlibrary.org/


AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday, September 
7, 2012, at Linville Ridge.  If you wish to attend, please notify Anita prior to August 24 so she 
may assist in the registration. 
 
The Interlocal Governmental Retreat has been rescheduled for Thursday October 11, 2012, from 
5:00 P.M. to 7:00 P.M.  The meeting location will be determined at a later date.  The topic will 
be the Watauga County Comprehensive Transportation Plan.  Craig Hughes with High Country 
Council of Governments and NCDOT planning staff will make presentations. 
 
 
 
 
  

082112 BCC Meeting

71



082112 BCC Meeting

72



082112 BCC Meeting

73



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Phil Trew <ptrew@regiond.org>
Sent: Wednesday, August 15, 2012 2:30 PM
To: Deron.Geouque; Ed Evans; Greg Lovins; Greg Young; Randy Feierabend; Scott Hildebran
Cc: Anita.Fogle; Jennifer Broderick; Kim Brown; Sharon Greene
Subject: Watauga Intergovernmental Retreat - Save the Date

Hello all: 
 
This is a save the date notice in case you want to share with your boards. 
 
The next Watauga Intergovernmental Retreat will be held Thursday October 11, 2012 from 5:00 – 7:00 pm.  The topic will be 
discussion of the Watauga County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP).  Meeting location has not been confirmed yet. 
 
I will send a reminder next month, and agenda packets on October 1. 
 
Phillip Trew, AICP 
Director of Planning and Development 
High Country Council of Governments 
468 New Market Boulevard 
Boone, NC 28607 
828-265-5434, ext. 121 
828-265-5439 (fax) 
ptrew@regiond.org 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

74



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
 

082112 BCC Meeting

75


	Agenda 
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the August 21, 2012 Agenda
	Consideration of Proposed Resolutions
	A.  Honoring the Life and Service of Dep. William R. Mast, Jr.
	B.  Expressing the Appreciation of the Watauga BCC for the Assistance Rendered to Watauga County on July 26, 2012, and the Following Weeks

	Economic Development Commission’s Small Business Park Proposal
	Request for Approval of Insurance/Response Maps
	Hunger and Health Coalition Paving Request
	Public Hearings to Allow Citizen Comment
	A.  CDBG 2009 Scattered Site Housing Program Close-Out
	B.  CDBG 2012 Scattered Site Housing Program Pre-Application

	Planning and Inspections Matters
	A.  Proposed Amendments to the Gate Ordinance
	B.  Proposed Amendments to the Wireless Tower Ordinance

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Brush Grinding Contract
	B.  Boards and Commissions
	C.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	Possible Action After Closed Session



